
 
To achieve optimal health at all stages of life for all District residents 

DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS AND POLICIES  
Board and Staff Communications and Policies Committee Meeting 

February 13, 2025 
4:00 P.M.  

Desert Healthcare District and Foundation  
Located at the 

Regional Access Project Foundation  
Suite G-100 

41550 Eclectic Street Palm Desert, CA 92211 
  

In lieu of attending the meeting in person, members of the public can participate by webinar using the 
following Zoom link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89289651827?pwd=VgdcTdLvZiwkWAlK3J4FOAEdvLhEv8.1 
Webinar ID: 892 8965 1827 

Password: 334701 
Members of the public can also participate by telephone, using the follow dial in information: 

Dial in #:(669) 900-6833 or (833) 548-0276 To Listen and Address the Committee when called upon: 
Webinar ID: 892 8965 1827 

Password: 334701 
REVISED AGENDA  

Page 
 
A. Call to Order – President Carole Rogers, RN, Chair   
 
B. Approval of the Agenda   
 
C. Approval of the Meeting Minutes   
 
 1. June 11, 2024  Action 4 - 9 
 

Page 1 of 71

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89289651827?pwd=VgdcTdLvZiwkWAlK3J4FOAEdvLhEv8.1


D. Public Comments 
At this time, comments from the audience may be made on items not listed on the 
agenda that are of public interest and within the subject-matter jurisdiction of the 
District. The Committee has a policy of limiting speakers to not more than three 
minutes. The Committee cannot take action on items not listed on the agenda. 
Public input may be offered on an agenda item when it comes up for discussion 
and/or action. 
 

 

 
E. Old Business   
 
 1. Policy BOD-02 – Elections and Appointments  

Discussion and Possible Action  
10 - 14 

 
 2. Policy BOD 03 – Appointment to Committees  15 - 32 

  Policy Revisions - Action   
 
 3. BOD-09 Rules of Order for Board and Committee Meetings  33 - 34 

  Policy Revisions - Action   
 
 4. Policy BOD-10 – Board Meeting Conduct  

Discussion and Possible Action  
35 - 44 

 
 5. BOD 18 – Ticket Distribution Policy  

Discussion and Possible Action  
45 - 48 

 
 6. FIN 02 – Authorized Check Signers  49 - 54 

  Policy Revisions - Action   
 
 7. FIN 06 – Financial Reserve Policy  55 - 58 

  Policy Revisions - Action   
 
 8. OP-06 Delegating Minor Claims Settlement to CEO  59 - 60 

  Policy Review – Action   
 
 9. PROC-01 Purpose of Board Policies  61 - 64 

  Policy Revisions – Action   
 
 10. OP-17 Sponsorships  65 - 66 

  New Policy – Action   
 

Page 2 of 71



F. New Business   
 
 1. AB 2019 – Aguiar-Curry – Health Care Districts  67 - 71 
 
G. Future Topics & Issues   
 
H. Adjournment    

  
The undersigned certifies that a copy of this agenda was posted in the front entrance to the 
Desert Healthcare District offices located at 1140 North Indian Canyon Drive, Palm Springs, 
California, and the front entrance of the Desert Healthcare District office located at the Regional 
Access Project Foundation, 41550 Eclectic Street, Suite G100, Palm Desert California at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. If you have a disability or require a translator for accommodation to 
enable you to participate in this meeting, please email Andrea S. Hayles, Special Assistant to the 
CEO and Board Relations Officer at ahayles@dhcd.org or call (760) 567-0591 at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

 

 

Page 3 of 71



 
 

BOARD AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS & POLICIES COMMITTEE MEETING 
MEETING MINUTES 

June 11, 2024 
 

Page 1 of 4 
Board and Staff Communications & Polices Committee  

June 11, 2024 

 

Directors Present District Staff Present Absent 

Chair/Director Leticia De Lara, MPA, Chair 
President Evett PerezGil 
Director Les Zendle, MD 
 
 

Chris Christensen, CEO, CPA 
Donna Craig, Chief Program Officer 
Alejandro Espinoza, MPH, Chief of 
Community Engagement 
Eric Taylor, CPA, Accounting Manager 
Andrea S. Hayles, MBA, Board Relations 
Officer 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS    DISCUSSION                   ACTION  

I.  Call to Order 
       

The meeting was called to order 
at 12:07 p.m. by Chair De Lara 
with all directors present except 
President PerezGil who joined 
the meeting at 12:30 p.m. 

 

II.  Approval of Agenda Director De Lara asked for a 
motion to approve the agenda. 

Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve the agenda. 
Motion passed unanimously.   

III.  Meeting Minutes  Director De Lara asked for a 
motion to approve the February 
12, 2024, meeting minutes. 

Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve the February 12, 2024 
meeting minutes. 
Motion passed unanimously.   

IV. Public Comment There were no public comments.  

V. Old Business 
 

1. Existing Policy Revisions 

a. Policy #FIN-02 – 
Authorized Check 
Signers, Number of 
Signers, Dollar 
Limits for Signers, 
Transfer of Funds  
 
 
 

b. Policy #FIN-03 – 
Statement of 
Investment Policy 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Chris Christensen, CEO, 
described review of Policy #FIN-
02 at the May F&A Committee 
meeting with no modifications. 
 
There were no questions or 
comments. 
 
 
Mr. Christensen described 
review of the existing Policy 
#FIN-03 by the F&A Committee 
at the May meeting with no 
modifications other than the 

 
 
  
Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve Policy #FIN-02 – Authorized 
Check Signers, Number of Signers, 
Dollar Limits for Signers, Transfer of 
Funds and forward to the Board for 
approval. 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve Policy #FIN-03 – Statement 
of Investment Policy and forward to 
the Board for approval. 
Motion passed unanimously.   

Page 4 of 71



 
 

BOARD AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS & POLICIES COMMITTEE MEETING 
MEETING MINUTES 

June 11, 2024 
 

Page 2 of 4 
Board and Staff Communications & Polices Committee  

June 11, 2024 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c. Resolution No. 24-
01 – FY2024-2025 
Statement of 
Investment Policy  

 
 
 

 
 

d. Policy #FIN-05 – 
Credit Card Usage  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

e. Policy #BOD-18 – 
Ticket Distribution 
Policy  

 
 
 
 
 
 

f. Policy #BOD-21 – 
Board Member 
Compensation 
Guidelines  

 
 
 

accompanying Resolution #24-
01.  
 
The committee inquired about 
restaurants in the inclusion of 
the investment resolution, which 
is related to fast food and 
unhealthy diet consumption.  
 
Mr. Christensen described 
Resolution #24-01 reviewed at 
the May F&A Committee to 
accompany Policy #FIN-03 with 
no modifications. 
 
There were no questions or 
comments. 
 
Mr. Christensen described the 
F&A Committee’s review of 
Policy #FIN-05 at the May 
meeting with the inclusion of 
“itemized” for all credit card 
transactions in section 2.c.  
 
There were no questions or 
comments. 
 
Mr. Christensen reviewed Policy 
#BOD-18 with the committee 
describing the date change for 
committee approval.  
 
There were no questions or 
comments. 
 
 
Mr. Christensen reviewed Policy 
#BOD-21 with the committee, 
describing the modifications to 
sections 1 and 3.  
 
The committee requested clarity 
on item A.5.b. for meetings with 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve Resolution No. 24-01 – 
FY2024-2025 Statement of 
Investment Policy and forward to the 
Board for approval. 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve Policy #FIN-05 – Credit Card 
Usage and forward to the Board for 
approval. 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
 
 
Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve Policy #BOD-18 – Ticket 
Distribution Policy and forward to the 
Board for approval. 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
 
 

Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve Policy #BOD-21 – Board 
Member Compensation Guidelines 
with additional language to item 
A.5.b., increasing the insurance 
premium limit to $13,000 in item C.,  

Page 5 of 71



 
 

BOARD AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS & POLICIES COMMITTEE MEETING 
MEETING MINUTES 

June 11, 2024 
 

Page 3 of 4 
Board and Staff Communications & Polices Committee  

June 11, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

g. Policy #LPMP-01 – 
LPMP Policy for 
Leasing  

 
 
 
 
 
 

h. Policy #LPMP-02 – 
LPMP Execution 
Policy  

 
 
 
 
 

i. Policy #OP-14 – 
Expense 
Authorization  

other government agencies or 
officials for healthcare or District 
business, which should be at the 
request of the CEO, board 
president, or the board with 
specific language describing the 
line item.  
  
The committee discussed item C. 
and the increase in the 
healthcare premiums with the 
consideration for staff to 
increase the insurance limit from 
$10,600 per fiscal year to 
$13,000. 
 
 
 

Mr. Christensen reviewed Policy 
#LPMP-01 with the committee 
describing the date change for 
committee approval.  
 
There were no questions or 
comments. 
 
 
Mr. Christensen reviewed Policy 
#LPMP-02 with the committee 
describing the date change for 
committee approval.  
 
There were no questions or 
comments. 
 
Mr. Christensen reviewed Policy 
#OP-14 with the committee, 
describing the modifications to 
section a., which includes a $10 
increase for reimbursement of 
travel expense meals and tax 
and tip. 
 
After a lengthy discussion on 
increasing reimbursable meals 

and forwarding to the Board for 
approval. 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve Policy #LPMP-01 – LPMP 
Policy for Leasing and forward to the 
Board for approval. 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
 
Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and Director De Lara to 
approve Policy #LPMP-02 – LPMP 
Execution Policy and forward to the 
Board for approval. 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
 
Moved and seconded by Director 
Zendle and President PerezGil to 
approve Policy #OP-14 – Expense 
Authorization with a modification of 
$30 for breakfast, $35 for lunch, and 
$60 for dinner and forward to the 
Board for approval. 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 

Page 6 of 71



 
 

BOARD AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS & POLICIES COMMITTEE MEETING 
MEETING MINUTES 

June 11, 2024 
 

Page 4 of 4 
Board and Staff Communications & Polices Committee  

June 11, 2024 

for travel expenses, the 
committee proposed limits of 
$30 for breakfast, $35 for lunch, 
and $60 for dinner.  

VI.  Future Topics & Issues The committee considered the 
written public comments of Brad 
Anderson, Rancho Mirage 
Resident, highlighting legal 
counsel’s prior explanation at 
several board meetings 
concerning the committee’s 
remote convening of meetings. 
Staff suggested the possibility of 
including a government code on 
the meeting agendas, where 
applicable.     

 

VII.  Adjournment Director De Lara adjourned the 
meeting at 12:44 p.m. 

Audio recording available on the 
website at 
https://www.dhcd.org/Agendas-and-
Documents 

 

 
 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________________________________ 
  Leticia De Lara, MPA, Chair/Director 
  Board and Staff Communications & Policies Committee 
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Andrea S. Hayles, MBA, Board Relations Officer 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 71

https://www.dhcd.org/Agendas-and-Documents
https://www.dhcd.org/Agendas-and-Documents


From: Brad Anderson
To: Andrea Hayles
Subject: Public Comment(s) - DHCD B/S Communications & Policies Committee Meeting for June 11, 2024 (12:PM)

Remotely ONLY performed meeting
Date: Monday, June 10, 2024 11:00:21 PM

June 10, 2024

Desert Healthcare District (DHCD)
1140 North Indian Canyon Dr. 
Palm Springs,  California 
(760) 567-0298 - ahayles@dhcd.org 
Attn:  Clerk of the Board 

Re:  Written letter to be entered in the Public record and made available for public Inspection
for the June 11, 2024 (12:PM) "ONLY" Remotely performed DHCD Board and Staff
Communications and Policies Committee Meeting - Agenda Items: 4 and 5.i

Dear current DHCD Board of Directors, 

     Please review my written statements listed below prior to the consideration of each agenda
Items as listed. 

1)  Agenda Item:  4  (Public Comment - Non-Agenda)

The DHCD Board of directors and it's legal counsel have been repeatedly notified of the
potentially unlawful actions of conducting DHCD committee meeting(s) ONLY by Internet
access and or telephone accessibility. 
DHCD have decided to ban Public participation (meeting monitoring and potential Public
testimony) at a majority of DHCD preceved open Public meetings of its organization from
"In-Person" Public participation.
  
In addition to not supplying an in-person meeting location for Coachella Valley Resident's to
attend DHCD preceved open Public committee meetings. DHCD has taken very unique and
unusual maneuvers to have Board members not meet in one location or be accessible to the
general public.  It's been demonstrated that a toll-free telephone access number was not
operational to an DHCD prior remotely performed public meeting causing a valley citizen to
use their financial resources (long distance telephone call) to attend a DHCD remotely
performed "local" public meeting.

It's reasonable to consider that DHCD have been repeatedly violating common sense and long
established California best practices protocols in regards to Public meetings of the people's
business. 
Please correct this blanted subversion of best practices protocols and potentially unlawful
actions.

2)  Agenda Item:  5.i   (Policy #OP-14 - Expense Increases)

Oppose to Increasing DHCD organization(s) meal expenses to the recommended financial
amounts.   
Increasing each meal (breakfast/lunch/dinner) by Ten dollars ($10.) each is excessive and

Page 8 of 71



beyond what would be reasonable. 
Tax funded "tipping" shouldn't be allowed or encouraged by DHCD.  

It's unreasonable to consider spending tax collected dollars for grand outings (meals) of
DHCD officials while most Coachella Valley Resident's could easily feed themselves on the
proposed Increase ($10.).

Stop wasting taxpayer's resources - 

Sincerely, 

Brad Anderson | 37043 Ferber Dr.  Rancho Mirage,  CA.
 

Cc:

Page 9 of 71



 

 
 

DESERT HEALTHCARE 

D I S T R I C T & F O U N D A T I O N  

 

 
 
Date:             February 13, 2025 

 
To:             Board & Staff Communications and Policies Committee 

 
Subject:           Consideration to Approve Policies 
 

 
 

Staff Recommendation: Consideration to approve policies as noted below. 
 
 

Background: 

The below existing policies require review and/or revisions: 

• Policy #BOD-02 – Elections and Appointment – discussion and possible action 

• Policy #BOD-03 – Appointment to Committees – revisions 

• Policy #BOD-09 – Rules of Order for Board and Committee Meetings – minor 

revisions 

• Policy #BOD-10 – Board Meeting Conduct – discussion and possible action 

• Policy #BOD-18 – Ticket Distribution Policy – discussion and possible action 

• Policy #FIN-02 – Authorized Check Signers, Number of Signers, Dollar Limit for 

Signers, Transfer of Funds – revisions 

• Policy #FIN-06 – Financial Reserve Policy – revisions 

• Policy #OP-06 – Delegating Minor Claims Settlement to CEO – review only 

• Policy #PROC-01 – Purpose of Board Policies – revisions 

 

The below new policies are presented for review: 

• Policy #OP-17 – Sponsorships – new policy 

 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Page 10 of 71



 
 

POLICY #BOD-02    Page 1 of 4 

  
POLICY TITLE: ELECTION & APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES OF 

BOARD OFFICERS   
 
POLICY NUMBER:   BOD-02 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-12-2024  
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-27-2024          
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
POLICY #BOD-02:  It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) to establish 
the rules for appointment of Board officers and sets forth the election process and the 
duties of the officers. Further, the roles and responsibilities of said officers are as 
described in this policy. 
 
GUIDELINES: 
  
      1.  Appointment and Term of Board Officers 

There shall be four Board officers: President, Vice-President, Secretary, and 
Treasurer. It shall be the policy of the Board that there will be no mandatory rotation 
of officers; however, the Board shall customarily retain the President for two (2) 
consecutive one (1) year terms (if eligible). After the first term, the Board shall vote 
on the matter of whether the President shall serve a second term. The President 
shall be limited to two (2) consecutive terms. The Vice Presidency will provide an 
opportunity to train a Director to possibly ascend to the Presidency when that 
position becomes vacant. The Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer will be 
elected for one (1) year terms, and there shall be no term limits. The Board shall 
retain the authority to remove and replace any board officer at any time and for 
any reason with a majority vote.   
 
Process for the Election of Board Officers 
The officers of the Board shall be chosen by the Board as the first agenda item at 
the first regular board meeting in December. Legal Counsel will call for nominations 
for the position of Board President. No vote shall be taken until all nominations 
have been made. Once all nominations are made, nominations shall be closed and 
a vote shall be taken. The process will continue for the office of Vice-President, the 
office of Secretary, and the office of Treasurer.   
 
 

Page 11 of 71



 
 

POLICY #BOD-02    Page 2 of 4 

      2.  Board President 
The Board shall elect one of its members as President in accordance with Section 
1 above. The President shall serve as chairperson at all Board meetings and shall 
have the same rights as the other Board Members in voting; introducing motions, 
resolutions; and participating in discussions. The President assures the integrity of 
the Board’s process and, secondarily, occasionally represents the Board to outside 
parties. In public meetings, the Board President adheres to and implements the 
rules of order as approved by the Board. The President behaves consistently with 
District policies and those legitimately imposed upon it from outside the 
organization. In the absence of the President, the Vice-President shall serve as 
chairperson. If both the President and Vice-President are absent, the Secretary 
shall act as chairperson. 
 

 In addition, the duties of the President include: 
 2.1  The President shall execute Board documents on behalf of the Board unless 
 such authority has been delegated to the Chief Executive Officer under specific 
 circumstances. 

2.2  The President is empowered to chair Board meetings with all the commonly 
accepted authorities of that position (e.g., ruling, recognizing, keeping order, 
changing the order of announced agenda items). 
2.3  The President shall appoint Board committee members and committee’s chair 
position. 
2.4  The President has no authority to supervise or direct the Chief Executive 
Officer. The President has no more authority than any other Board members.  
2.5  The President shall work with the Chief Executive Officer in monitoring and 
planning the agenda forecast. 
2.6  The President may represent the Board to outside parties in announcing and   
presenting of the Board after formal Board action has been taken. 
2.7  The President may determine, in concert with the Chief Executive Officer as 
necessary, whether to place on an agenda consideration of documents of support 
or recognition (e.g., resolutions, commendations, certificates of appreciation, etc.) 
for individuals, organizations or efforts in the community by evaluating whether the 
individual, organization or effort has a clear nexus to issues relevant to the District.  
2.8  The President may also sign such certificates established in 2.7 upon 
successful approval of the Board. 
2.9  The President may make and second motions and vote in the same manner 
as other Board members. 
2.10  Agenda items may be added by the President or at the request of two board 

Page 12 of 71



 
 

POLICY #BOD-02    Page 3 of 4 

members. 
2.11 There is no veto power from the President. 

 
    3.  Board Vice-President 

The Board shall elect one of its members as Vice President in accordance with 
Section 1 above. 
3.1  In the absence of the President, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of 
the President.  

 
    4.  Board Secretary 

The Board shall elect a Secretary in accordance with Section 1 above.  
4.1  The Secretary shall be charged with the safekeeping of the minutes of all 
meetings of the Board and Committees in accordance with the adopted rules of 
the Board and shall sign the minutes in a ministerial capacity, following their 
approval of the Board. 
4.2  The Secretary shall give or cause to be given appropriate notices in 
accordance with the policies and bylaws or as required by law and shall act as 
custodian of District records and reports.  
4.3   The Secretary may delegate Board Secretary duties to a District Staff member 
and not a member of the Board of Directors.   
 

   5.  Board Treasurer  
The Board shall elect a Treasurer in accordance with Section 1 above.  
5.1  The Treasurer shall be charged with the safekeeping and disbursal of the 
funds in the treasury of the District. 
5.2   The Treasurer will serve as chair of the Finance, Legal, Administration, & Real 
Estate Committee.   
5.3  The Treasurer may delegate Board Treasurer duties to a District Staff member 
and not a member of the Board of Directors.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 71



 
 

POLICY #BOD-02    Page 4 of 4 

AUTHORITIES 
Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article VII 
 
DOCUMENT HISTORY 
Revised  02-27-2024 
Revised  03-22-2022 
Revised  06-23-2020 
Approved  12-15-2015 

Page 14 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 1 of 9 

 
POLICY TITLE:   APPOINTMENT & DUTIES FOR COMMITTEES   
 
POLICY NUMBER:   BOD-03 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025  
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-25-2025    
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #BOD-03:  It shall be the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) that 

the Board of Directors (“Board”) President shall appoint Board members to all committees 

and all committees shall be advisory only to the full Board of Directors unless otherwise 

specifically authorized to act by the Board. The District encourages community 

engagement to ensure the community’s voice is heard. For guidelines, reference Policy 

#OP-15 Engagement of the Community, Public, and Subject Matter Experts. 

 

1. DISTRICT BOARD COMMITTEES: 

1.1. Ad-hoc Committees. Special Ad-hoc Committees of less than a quorum of 

the Board may be appointed by the Board President for specific tasks or for 

a limited or a single purpose that is not perpetual. Ad hoc Committees shall 

not be created by formal action of the Board and shall be dissolved once 

the specific task is completed.  

 

1.2. Standing Committees. The District Bylaws shall reference and list the Board 

Standing Committees which shall meet regularly to review reports from 

District staff, legal counsel, and consultants relating to the subject matter of 

the committee. Annually at the first Board meeting following the election of 

officers, the Board President shall appoint three Board members to each 

Standing Committee and a chairperson. The Board Treasurer shall serve 

as the Chairperson of the Finance, Legal and Administrative Committee 

(F&A Committee). There shall be the following Standing Committees: 

 

1.2.1. Finance, Legal, Administration, and Real Estate Committee (F&A). 

This committee shall be responsible for making recommendations to the 

Board where appropriate on matters related to finance, administration, 

human resources, property management, legal affairs (including 

legislation), real estate, and information systems (IS).   

 

Page 15 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 2 of 9 

1.2.2. Strategic Planning Committee. This committee shall meet quarterly, 

or more often if needed, and shall be responsible for monitoring the District’s 

progress in achieving the goals and expectations outlined in its strategic 

plan.  

 

1.2.3. Hospital Lease Oversight Committee. This committee shall meet 

quarterly, or more often if needed, and shall be charged with oversight 

responsibilities to ensure compliance with the terms of the current Lease of 

Desert Regional Medical Center.   

 

1.2.4. Program Committee. This committee shall be responsible for 

oversight and for making recommendations to the Board on District matters 

related to grant-making and related programs. 

 

1.2.5.  Board and Staff Communications & Policies Committee. This 

committee shall meet quarterly, or more often if needed, and shall be 

responsible for monitoring and developing the District’s Board and staff 

communications and relations. The committee is also responsible for 

developing and maintaining the District’s policies and policies manual. 

 

1.2.6. Volunteer Committee Members. The F&A and Program Committees 

may each include up to three (3) volunteer members. These members are 

not voting members and will be subject to the Volunteer Member 

Guidelines. 

 

2. F&A COMMITTEE. In accordance with the District Bylaws, this committee shall be 

responsible for oversight and for making recommendations to the Board where 

appropriate on matters related to finance, administration, human resources, 

property management, legal affairs (including legislation) real estate, and 

information systems (IS). This committee may also include three (3) non-voting 

volunteer members.     

 

2.1. Responsibilities.  The responsibilities of the F&A Committee include the 

following: 

 

• To understand the financial needs and conditions of the District. 

 

• To provide objective perspective regarding financial and administrative 

Page 16 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 3 of 9 

needs. 

 

• To provide advice, counsel and feedback to the committee as requested 

during budget development. 

   

3. STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE.  In accordance with the District Bylaws, 

this committee shall meet quarterly, or more often if needed, and shall be 

responsible for monitoring the District’s progress in achieving the expectations 

outlined in the District’s strategic plan. 

 

3.1. Responsibilities.  The responsibilities of the Strategic Planning Committee 

include the following: 

 

• Responsible for monitoring the District’s progress in achieving the 
expectations outlined in its strategic plan.  
 

• To provide vision and guidance on the development of the District’s 
strategic plan. 
 

• To monitor implementation of the District's strategic plan and program-
related activities to ensure programs/initiatives are achieving the 
desired impact. 

 

4. HOSPITAL LEASE OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE. In accordance with the District 

Bylaws, this committee shall meet quarterly, or more often if needed, and shall be 

charged with oversight responsibilities to ensure compliance with the terms of the 

current lease of Desert Regional Medical Center.     

 

4.1. Responsibilities.  The responsibilities of the Hospital Lease Oversight 

Committee include the following: 

• Review of all mandated Hospital operation scores and reports 

performed by independent third parties. 

• Review of quarterly inspections of Hospital facilities. 

 

• Provide updates to the Board of Directors. 

 

• Provide an annual report reflective of lease requirements from lessee. 

Page 17 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 4 of 9 

   

5. PROGRAM COMMITTEE.  In accordance with the District's mission and strategic 

plan, the grant program provides funds to qualified nonprofit and governmental 

grantees to make positive impacts on community health and improve access to 

health care. The Program Committee recommends grant making policy to the 

Board of Directors and guides and monitors District grant making functions and 

program-related activities through which the District carries out its strategic plan to 

achieve optimal health for all stages of life for all District residents. This committee 

may also include three (3) non-voting volunteer members. 

 

5.1  Responsibilities.  The responsibilities of the Program Committee include the 

following: 

• To identify trends and healthcare needs that can be addressed by the District 

and provide input on needs assessments conducted by District staff. 

• To provide advice, counsel and feedback to staff as needed during program 

development. 

• To monitor implementation of grant making and program-related activities to 

ensure alignment with the District’s Strategic Plan. 

• To identify key program issues to be discussed at the Board level. 

• To consider grant proposals and recommendations provided by staff and 

make recommendations of grants to the District's Board of Directors to 

approve as presented, approve with modification, request additional 

information, or decline. 

 

6. BOARD AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS & POLICIES COMMITTEE.  In 

accordance with the District's bylaws, this committee shall meet quarterly or more 

often, if needed, and shall be responsible for monitoring and developing the 

District’s Board and staff communications and relations. The committee is also 

responsible for developing and maintaining the District’s policies and policies 

manual. 

 

6.1 Responsibilities. The responsibilities of the Board and Staff Communications 

& Policies Committee include the following: 

 

• To inquire, monitor and develop details for communication between the Board 

Page 18 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 5 of 9 

and Staff. 

• To review and develop policies applicable to the District & Foundation. 

• To review and revise, as needed, policies on a two (2) year rotation to ensure 

policies are up to date. 

• Some policies may require review of the respective committee (i.e F&A 

Committee and Program Committee) prior to review by the Board and Staff 

Communications & Policies Committee.  

7. VOLUNTEER MEMBER GUIDELINES. Volunteer member guidelines outline the 

requirements for volunteer members to participate on District Standing 

Committees. Unless otherwise provided, the appointment process and guidelines 

will be the same for all committees. Interviews for volunteer members shall be at 

the discretion of the committee. All volunteer members shall reside within the 

jurisdiction of the District and shall be subject to the approval of the full Board of 

Directors. 

7.1    Volunteer Member Term. Volunteer members shall serve one (1) three (3) 

year term. At the end of the three (3) year term, a volunteer member may provide 

a written request to the Board for consideration to continue to serve on the 

committee. Any openings or reappointments on the committee will be considered 

at the end of the term. Any volunteer member who is employed by or sits on the 

Board of Directors of a grantee, is ineligible to serve on the committee within one 

year of filing a grant proposal and will be required to resign from the committee. All 

volunteer members who are termed out or resign due to applying or receiving a 

grant must wait a minimum of one year before reapplying to become a volunteer 

member. 

7.2 Vacancies. Volunteer members who miss three consecutive unexcused 

meetings may be removed at the discretion of the committee chairperson. In the 

event of the vacancy of a volunteer member, notice of the vacancy and application 

process shall be published on the District website for a minimum of 14 days. The 

committee chairperson shall also have the discretion to publish notice of the 

vacancy and application process in a local newspaper of general circulation. 

Community members shall submit applications to become a volunteer member and 

their qualifications in writing to the District office. The committee shall conduct 

interviews of qualified applicants. The committee selections will be recommended 

to the Board for approval. 

Page 19 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 6 of 9 

 
7.3 Meetings and Voting. The committees meet on a monthly basis, as 

necessary, prior to meetings of the full Board. Meetings are convened by the 

committee chairperson in coordinate with District staff. In accordance with their 

responsibilities, volunteer members shall participate in the committee meetings but 

would not possess voting privileges. The recommendations of volunteer members 

while noted in the record, shall be advisory in nature only. 

 
7.4 Conflicts of Interest. Volunteer members shall not make or influence a 

recommendation or decision related to any committee recommendation which will 

benefit the volunteer member’s outside employment, business, or personal 

financial interest or benefit an immediate family member, such as a spouse, child, 

or parent. A volunteer member shall not participate, discuss, or vote on any issue, 

or recommendation which directly inures to their financial interest or with respect 

to which they have any other conflict of interest. Volunteer members shall follow 

the adopted District Conflict of Interest Code in accordance with California law. 

 
7.5 Responsibilities and Volunteer Agreement. All volunteer members shall 

complete the following Volunteer Agreement. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 7 of 9 

 

VOLUNTEER AGREEMENT: 

 As a volunteer committee member, I understand and agree that I am responsible, 

collectively with my fellow committee members, for guiding and monitoring activities 

through which the Desert Healthcare District pursues its strategic plan to improve the 

health of the District’s residents. I agree to the following responsibilities and criteria: 

 Volunteer members of the District/Foundation committees are expected to, and 

agree to: 

1. Make every effort to attend all committee meetings, including any special 

scheduled meetings. If any member is absent for three (3) or more meetings 

within a calendar year, that individual’s appointment to their respective 

committee will be reviewed. 

 

2. Thoroughly read and understand all the materials related to the committee 

and be willing to be a “continual learner” about all matters of importance to 

philanthropy and to the District, and to take advantage of learning 

opportunities offered. 

 
3. To participate in providing vision and guidance on the development of the 

District’s strategic plan. 

 
4. To participate in monitoring implementation of the District’s strategic plan 

and program related activities to ensure programs are achieving the desired 

impact. 

 
5. Review all respective committee packets, and to any other materials 

provided by staff prior to each meeting. 

 
6. Actively participate in committee discussions and deliberations and wisely 

consider each matter on with the committee is asked to vote. 

 
7. Consider all matters brought before the committee objectively and “on the 

merits” and make decisions that best represent the interests of the District. 

 
8. Be supportive of the decisions of the committee and the District. 

 

Page 21 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 8 of 9 

9. Be willing to compromise, if necessary, in order to foster a cooperative 

atmosphere for all the people who participate in the work of the District. 

 
10. Abide by the Conflict-of-Interest Policy by disclosing any potential conflicts. 

 
 

___________________________________ 

Volunteer Name   Date 

 

____________________________________ 

Committee Chairperson  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 9 of 9 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article VI 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  02-25-2025 

Revised  03-28-2023 

Revised  11-24-2020 

Revised  04-23-2019 

Approved  03-22-2016 

Page 23 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 1 of 9 

 
POLICY TITLE:   APPOINTMENT & DUTIES FOR COMMITTEES   
 
POLICY NUMBER:   BOD-03 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025  
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-25-2025    
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #BOD-03:  It shall be the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) that 

the Board of Directors (“Board”) President shall appoint Board members to all committees 

and all committees shall be advisory only to the full Board of Directors unless otherwise 

specifically authorized to act by the Board. The District encourages community 

engagement to ensure the community’s voice is heard. For guidelines, reference Policy 

#OP-15 Engagement of the Community, Public, and Subject Matter Experts. 

 

1. DISTRICT BOARD COMMITTEES: 

1.1. Ad-hoc Committees. Special Ad-hoc Committees of less than a quorum of 

the Board may be appointed by the Board President for specific tasks or for 

a limited or a single purpose that is not perpetual. Ad hoc Committees shall 

not be created by formal action of the Board and shall be dissolved once 

the specific task is completed.  

 

1.2. Standing Committees. The District Bylaws shall reference and list the Board 

Standing Committees which shall meet regularly to review reports from 

District staff, legal counsel, and consultants relating to the subject matter of 

the committee. Annually at the first Board meeting following the election of 

officers, the Board President shall appoint three Board members to each 

Standing Committee and a chairperson. The Board Treasurer shall serve 

as the Chairperson of the Finance, Legal and Administrative Committee 

(F&A Committee). There shall be the following Standing Committees: 

 

1.2.1. Finance, Legal, Administration, and Real Estate Committee (F&A). 

This committee shall be responsible for making recommendations to the 

Board where appropriate on matters related to finance, administration, 

human resources, property management, legal affairs (including 

legislation), real estate, and information systems (IS).   

 

Deleted: 03-07-2023

Deleted: 03-28-2023

Page 24 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 2 of 9 

1.2.2. Strategic Planning Committee. This committee shall meet quarterly, 

or more often if needed, and shall be responsible for monitoring the District’s 

progress in achieving the goals and expectations outlined in its strategic 

plan.  

 

1.2.3. Hospital Lease Oversight Committee. This committee shall meet 

quarterly, or more often if needed, and shall be charged with oversight 

responsibilities to ensure compliance with the terms of the current Lease of 

Desert Regional Medical Center.   

 

1.2.4. Program Committee. This committee shall be responsible for 

oversight and for making recommendations to the Board on District matters 

related to grant-making and related programs. 

 

1.2.5.  Board and Staff Communications & Policies Committee. This 

committee shall meet quarterly, or more often if needed, and shall be 

responsible for monitoring and developing the District’s Board and staff 

communications and relations. The committee is also responsible for 

developing and maintaining the District’s policies and policies manual. 

 

1.2.6. Volunteer Committee Members. The F&A and Program Committees 

may each include up to three (3) volunteer members. These members are 

not voting members and will be subject to the Volunteer Member 

Guidelines. 

 

2. F&A COMMITTEE. In accordance with the District Bylaws, this committee shall be 

responsible for oversight and for making recommendations to the Board where 

appropriate on matters related to finance, administration, human resources, 

property management, legal affairs (including legislation) real estate, and 

information systems (IS). This committee may also include three (3) non-voting 

volunteer members.     

 

2.1. Responsibilities.  The responsibilities of the F&A Committee include the 

following: 

 

• To understand the financial needs and conditions of the District. 

 

• To provide objective perspective regarding financial and administrative 

Page 25 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 3 of 9 

needs. 

 

• To provide advice, counsel and feedback to the committee as requested 

during budget development. 

   

3. STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE.  In accordance with the District Bylaws, 

this committee shall meet quarterly, or more often if needed, and shall be 

responsible for monitoring the District’s progress in achieving the expectations 

outlined in the District’s strategic plan. 

 

3.1. Responsibilities.  The responsibilities of the Strategic Planning Committee 

include the following: 

 

• Responsible for monitoring the District’s progress in achieving the 
expectations outlined in its strategic plan.  
 

• To provide vision and guidance on the development of the District’s 
strategic plan. 
 

• To monitor implementation of the District's strategic plan and program-
related activities to ensure programs/initiatives are achieving the 
desired impact. 

 

4. HOSPITAL LEASE OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE. In accordance with the District 

Bylaws, this committee shall meet quarterly, or more often if needed, and shall be 

charged with oversight responsibilities to ensure compliance with the terms of the 

current lease of Desert Regional Medical Center.     

 

4.1. Responsibilities.  The responsibilities of the Hospital Lease Oversight 

Committee include the following: 

• Review of all mandated Hospital operation scores and reports 

performed by independent third parties. 

• Review of quarterly inspections of Hospital facilities. 

 

• Provide updates to the Board of Directors. 

 

• Provide an annual report reflective of lease requirements from lessee. 

Page 26 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 4 of 9 

   

5. PROGRAM COMMITTEE.  In accordance with the District's mission and strategic 

plan, the grant program provides funds to qualified nonprofit and governmental 

grantees to make positive impacts on community health and improve access to 

health care. The Program Committee recommends grant making policy to the 

Board of Directors and guides and monitors District grant making functions and 

program-related activities through which the District carries out its strategic plan to 

achieve optimal health for all stages of life for all District residents. This committee 

may also include three (3) non-voting volunteer members. 

 

5.1  Responsibilities.  The responsibilities of the Program Committee include the 

following: 

• To identify trends and healthcare needs that can be addressed by the District 

and provide input on needs assessments conducted by District staff. 

• To provide advice, counsel and feedback to staff as needed during program 

development. 

• To monitor implementation of grant making and program-related activities to 

ensure alignment with the District’s Strategic Plan. 

• To identify key program issues to be discussed at the Board level. 

• To consider grant proposals and recommendations provided by staff and 

make recommendations of grants to the District's Board of Directors to 

approve as presented, approve with modification, request additional 

information, or decline. 

 

6. BOARD AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS & POLICIES COMMITTEE.  In 

accordance with the District's bylaws, this committee shall meet quarterly or more 

often, if needed, and shall be responsible for monitoring and developing the 

District’s Board and staff communications and relations. The committee is also 

responsible for developing and maintaining the District’s policies and policies 

manual. 

 

6.1 Responsibilities. The responsibilities of the Board and Staff Communications 

& Policies Committee include the following: 

 

• To inquire, monitor and develop details for communication between the Board 

Page 27 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 5 of 9 

and Staff. 

• To review and develop policies applicable to the District & Foundation. 

• To review and revise, as needed, policies on a two (2) year rotation to ensure 

policies are up to date. 

• Some policies may require review of the respective committee (i.e F&A 

Committee and Program Committee) prior to review by the Board and Staff 

Communications & Policies Committee.  

7. VOLUNTEER MEMBER GUIDELINES. Volunteer member guidelines outline the 

requirements for volunteer members to participate on District Standing 

Committees. Unless otherwise provided, the appointment process and guidelines 

will be the same for all committees. Interviews for volunteer members shall be at 

the discretion of the committee. All volunteer members shall reside within the 

jurisdiction of the District and shall be subject to the approval of the full Board of 

Directors. 

7.1    Volunteer Member Term. Volunteer members shall serve one (1) three (3) 

year term. At the end of the three (3) year term, a volunteer member may provide 

a written request to the Board for consideration to continue to serve on the 

committee. Any openings or reappointments on the committee will be considered 

at the end of the term. Any volunteer member who is employed by or sits on the 

Board of Directors of a grantee, is ineligible to serve on the committee within one 

year of filing a grant proposal and will be required to resign from the committee. All 

volunteer members who are termed out or resign due to applying or receiving a 

grant must wait a minimum of one year before reapplying to become a volunteer 

member. 

7.2 Vacancies. Volunteer members who miss three consecutive unexcused 

meetings may be removed at the discretion of the committee chairperson. In the 

event of the vacancy of a volunteer member, notice of the vacancy and application 

process shall be published on the District website for a minimum of 14 days. The 

committee chairperson shall also have the discretion to publish notice of the 

vacancy and application process in a local newspaper of general circulation. 

Community members shall submit applications to become a volunteer member and 

their qualifications in writing to the District office. The committee shall conduct 

interviews of qualified applicants. The committee selections will be recommended 

to the Board for approval. 

Page 28 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 6 of 9 

 
7.3 Meetings and Voting. The committees meet on a monthly basis, as 

necessary, prior to meetings of the full Board. Meetings are convened by the 

committee chairperson in coordinate with District staff. In accordance with their 

responsibilities, volunteer members shall participate in the committee meetings but 

would not possess voting privileges. The recommendations of volunteer members 

while noted in the record, shall be advisory in nature only. 

 
7.4 Conflicts of Interest. Volunteer members shall not make or influence a 

recommendation or decision related to any committee recommendation which will 

benefit the volunteer member’s outside employment, business, or personal 

financial interest or benefit an immediate family member, such as a spouse, child, 

or parent. A volunteer member shall not participate, discuss, or vote on any issue, 

or recommendation which directly inures to their financial interest or with respect 

to which they have any other conflict of interest. Volunteer members shall follow 

the adopted District Conflict of Interest Code in accordance with California law. 

 
7.5 Responsibilities and Volunteer Agreement. All volunteer members shall 

complete the following Volunteer Agreement. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 7 of 9 

 

VOLUNTEER AGREEMENT: 

 As a volunteer committee member, I understand and agree that I am responsible, 

collectively with my fellow committee members, for guiding and monitoring activities 

through which the Desert Healthcare District pursues its strategic plan to improve the 

health of the District’s residents. I agree to the following responsibilities and criteria: 

 Volunteer members of the District/Foundation committees are expected to, and 

agree to: 

1. Make every effort to attend all committee meetings, including any special 

scheduled meetings. If any member is absent for three (3) or more meetings 

within a calendar year, that individual’s appointment to their respective 

committee will be reviewed. 

 

2. Thoroughly read and understand all the materials related to the committee 

and be willing to be a “continual learner” about all matters of importance to 

philanthropy and to the District, and to take advantage of learning 

opportunities offered. 

 
3. To participate in providing vision and guidance on the development of the 

District’s strategic plan. 

 
4. To participate in monitoring implementation of the District’s strategic plan 

and program related activities to ensure programs are achieving the desired 

impact. 

 
5. Review all respective committee packets, and to any other materials 

provided by staff prior to each meeting. 

 
6. Actively participate in committee discussions and deliberations and wisely 

consider each matter on with the committee is asked to vote. 

 
7. Consider all matters brought before the committee objectively and “on the 

merits” and make decisions that best represent the interests of the District. 

 
8. Be supportive of the decisions of the committee and the District. 

 

Page 30 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 8 of 9 

9. Be willing to compromise, if necessary, in order to foster a cooperative 

atmosphere for all the people who participate in the work of the District. 

 
10. Abide by the Conflict-of-Interest Policy by disclosing any potential conflicts. 

 
 

___________________________________ 

Volunteer Name   Date 

 

____________________________________ 

Committee Chairperson  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ¶

Page 31 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-03     Page 9 of 9 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article VI 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  02-25-2025 

Revised  03-28-2023 

Revised  11-24-2020 

Revised  04-23-2019 

Approved  03-22-2016 

Page 32 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-09     Page 1 of 1 

 

POLICY TITLE: RULES OF ORDER FOR BOARD AND COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS 

 
POLICY NUMBER:   BOD-09 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL:  02-13-2025  
    
BOARD APPROVAL:   02-25-2025 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #BOD-09:  It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) Board of 

Directors (“Board”) to conduct meetings in accordance with the following rules of order. 

 

GUIDELINES: 

 

      1. Unless otherwise provided by law, bylaws, or Board rules, Board meeting procedures 

shall be in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised. However, 

technical failure to follow Robert’s Rules of Order shall not invalidate any action. 

 

       2. The Board President may make and second motions and vote in the same manner 

as other Board members.  

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article V, section 5.7 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  02-25-2025 

Reviewed  03-28-2023 

Reviewed  02-23-2021 

Reviewed  07-23-2019 

Approved  03-23-2016 

Page 33 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-09     Page 1 of 1 

 

POLICY TITLE: RULES OF ORDER FOR BOARD AND COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS 

 
POLICY NUMBER:   BOD-09 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL:  02-13-2025  
    
BOARD APPROVAL:   02-25-2025 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #BOD-09:  It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) Board of 

Directors (“Board”) to conduct meetings in accordance with the following rules of order. 

 

GUIDELINES: 

 

      1. Unless otherwise provided by law, bylaws, or Board rules, Board meeting procedures 

shall be in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised. However, 

technical failure to follow Robert’s Rules of Order shall not invalidate any action. 

 

       2. The Board President may make and second motions and vote in the same manner 

as other Board members.  

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article V, section 5.7 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  02-25-2025 

Reviewed  03-28-2023 

Reviewed  02-23-2021 

Reviewed  07-23-2019 

Approved  03-23-2016 

Deleted: 03-07-2023

Deleted: 03-28-2023

Page 34 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-10     Page 1 of 3 

 
POLICY TITLE:   BOARD MEETING CONDUCT  
 
POLICY NUMBER:   BOD-10 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 03-07-2023  
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 03-28-2023  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #BOD-10:    It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) to conduct 

meetings in a manner consistent with Policy numbers #BOD-08, “Board Meetings” and 

#BOD-09, “Rules of Order for Board and Committee Meetings”. 

 

GUIDELINES: 

 

1. All Board of Directors (“Board”) meetings shall commence at the time stated on the 

agenda and shall be guided by the agenda. 

   

       2.  The conduct of meetings shall, to the fullest possible extent, enable Directors to: 

 

  2.1      Consider problems to be solved, weigh evidence related thereto, and 

make wise decisions intended to solve the problems; 

 

  2.2     Hear public testimony, and 

 

           2.3      Receive, consider and take any action with respect to reports of 

accomplishment of District operations. 

 

3.  To ensure that all members of the General Public have the opportunity to participate 

in the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Desert Healthcare District, the Board 

has established the following provisions for permitting any individual or group to 

address the Board concerning any item on the agenda of a special meeting, or to 

address the Board at a regular meeting on any subject that lies within the jurisdiction 

of the Board: 

  

3.1  It is the policy of the Board to allow three (3) minutes (exclusive of 

translation services) for any item not on the agenda that a member of the 

Page 35 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-10     Page 2 of 3 

public identifies at the beginning of the meeting under the agenda item 

“Public Comments”. 

 

3.2  For agenda items, members of the public may speak for five (5) 

minutes (exclusive of translation services) any time prior to a vote. 

 

3.3  A maximum of fifteen (15) minutes (exclusive of translation services) 

total per meeting shall be allowed for each member of the public.  

 

3.4    No disruptive and/or boisterous conduct shall be permitted at any Board 

meeting. Persistence in boisterous conduct shall be grounds for summary 

termination by the Board President/Chair of that person’s privilege of address.  

If unacceptable conduct persists, the Board President/Chair may request 

removal of the person from the meeting and/or clear the room, allowing only 

accredited members of the press, for the duration of the meeting. Only matters 

appearing on the agenda may be considered. The Board President/Chair may 

allow for those members of the public not responsible for the disruptive conduct 

back in the room, if desired. 

 

4.   A copy of this policy shall be made available to the public at each Board 

Meeting. 

  

5.   In order to adhere to this policy, the Board President/Chair of the Meeting        

shall follow the procedures as outlined below:  

 

         5.1   During the “Public Comments” agenda item, the Board President/Chair 

shall advise any members of the public wishing to address the Board on 

items not on the agenda that they may do so at this time. 

 

       5.2 After each agenda item has been motioned and seconded (if 

applicable), members of the Board and public will be given an opportunity 

to speak. 

     

5.3   The Board President/Chair shall advise any member of the public 

wishing to address the Board that they will have a time limit for each item 

identified with a maximum time of fifteen (15) minutes for the entire meeting. 

 

Page 36 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-10     Page 3 of 3 

  

 5.4    As the member of the public addresses each previously identified agenda 

item, their remarks shall be timed to ensure that the policy is followed. 

 

EXCEPTIONS: 

 

6.   The Board President/Chair, their designated alternate or the majority of the Board, 

are authorized to make exceptions to this policy during meetings. The Board as a 

whole may update this policy as it wishes. 

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article V & VI 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Reviewed  03-28-2023 

Revised  02-23-2021 

Revised  07-23-2019 

Approved  03-23-2016 

 

Page 37 of 71



Page 38 of 71



Page 39 of 71



Page 40 of 71



Page 41 of 71



Page 42 of 71



Page 43 of 71



Page 44 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-18     Page 1 of 4 

 
POLICY TITLE:   TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY  
  
POLICY NUMBER:   BOD-18 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 06-15-2022  
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 06-28-2022 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #BOD-18:  From time to time the Desert Healthcare District and Desert 

Healthcare Foundation (collectively referred to herein as "District") receives event tickets 

and/or passes from public and private entities and individuals or purchases event tickets 

and/or passes in connection with the District’s operations and activities in furtherance of 

the District’s public purposes. These tickets and/or passes purchased or received by the 

District are public resources of the District. 

 

The District desires to use such tickets and/or passes to further governmental and 

public purposes of the District, such as the promotion of the District’s activities and 

programs, and to avail the District and its officials, as defined in Government Code 

Section 82048 and Fair Political Practices Commission Regulation 18701 (Title 2, Division 

6, California Code of Regulations referred to herein as “FPPC Regulation”), of the ability 

to distribute tickets and/or passes pursuant to FPPC Regulation 18944.1. The furtherance 

of the District’s governmental and public purposes may require the distribution of said 

tickets and/or passes to “public officials,” as that term is defined in Government Code 

Section 82048; and 

 

FPPC Regulation 18944.1(e) requires that any distribution of said tickets and/or 

passes to, or at the behest of, an authorized District Official must be made pursuant to a 

duly adopted written policy, if such distribution is made under that regulation, and that the 

District must receive value equal to or greater than the value of the event ticket or pass it 

distributes to a District Official. As provided in FPPC Regulation 18944.1(c), such tickets 

and/or passes distributed in accordance with a duly adopted policy are not considered 

gifts to public officials. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Desert Healthcare 

District adopts the following Ticket Distribution policy: 

 

Section 1:  Definitions.   

 

 

Page 45 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-18     Page 2 of 4 

 

a. “District Official” shall mean and refer to a District “public official” as that term 

is defined by Government Code Section 82048 and FPPC Regulation 18701 

and shall include Board members, employees, and consultants required to 

file an annual Statement of Economic Interest Form 700. 

 

b. “Authorized District Official” shall mean a Board member or the Chief 

Executive Officer (“CEO”) who shall be authorized to request the District’s 

purchase of tickets or passes in accordance with Section 5 below.  

 

c. “Ticket” or “pass” as these terms are defined in FPPC Regulation 18944.1, 

as amended, and as of this date means admission to a facility, event, show, 

or performance for entertainment, amusement, recreation, or similar purpose.  

 

d. “Ticket Coordinator” shall mean the CEO or their designee who shall be 

responsible for distributing tickets in accordance with this policy and 

completing and posting the FPPC Form 802. 

 

Section 2:  Purpose of the Policy.  The purpose of this Policy is to ensure that all 

tickets and passes the District receives from public and private entities and individuals, 

which are either complimentary or purchased by the District, are distributed in furtherance 

of a public purpose of the District and are not utilized for any election-related purposes.   

 

Section 3: Limitation.  This Policy shall only apply to the District’s distribution of 

tickets and/or passes to, or those that are purchased at the behest of, an Authorized 

District Official. 

  

Section 4:  Public Purposes for Ticket Distribution.  The following list is 

illustrative, rather than exhaustive, of the public purposes the District may accomplish by 

the distribution of tickets to, or at the behest of, a District Official: 

 

a. Representation of the District at events on federal, state, and regional levels. 

b. Representation and promotion of the Desert Healthcare District at District 

sponsored or supported community events and programs. 

c. Increasing public exposure to and awareness of District sponsorships, grants, 

initiatives, projects, and facilities related to promoting the mission and vision 

of the District. 

 

Page 46 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-18     Page 3 of 4 

 

d. Promotion of District issues and representation at events sponsored by other 

governmental entities or government-related industry groups and non-profit 

organizations.  

e. Recognizing or rewarding meritorious service by any District Official or 

employee and recognizing contributions made by current and former District 

Officials. 

 

Section 5:  Purchase of Tickets or Passes.  Authorized District Officials may 

request the Ticket Coordinator purchase up to two (2) tickets in accordance with the public 

purposes of this policy for use by the District Official, an immediate family member 

(spouse or dependent children), or one other person. $20,000 per fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2019 shall be budgeted for the purchase of tickets and the purchase of tickets for 

use by any individual Authorized District Official shall not exceed $2,500 per fiscal year.   

 

Section 6: Transfer Prohibition.  The transfer by any District Official of any ticket 

distributed pursuant to this policy to any other person, except to other District Officials 

and staff members of the District, is prohibited. For tickets or passes that are unable to 

be used by the original recipient, the Ticket Coordinator shall have the discretion to 

redistribute to other District Officials or staff members.  

 

Section 7:  Posting Form 802 on Website.  Within thirty (30) days of distributing 

a ticket or pass, the District shall post a completed FPPC Form 802 on the District’s 

website. 

 

Section 8: Exemptions to Policy.  Tickets or passes that are not subject to this 

policy include the following: 

 

a. Ceremonial Role or Function.  Tickets or passes provided to an Authorized 

District Official where the official will perform a ceremonial role or function on 

behalf of the District are not considered gifts to the Authorized District Official. 

b. Reimbursement.  The Authorized District Official reimburses the District for 

the face value of the ticket or pass within thirty (30) days of receipt or 

acceptance of the ticket or pass, as defined in the Political Reform Act. 

c. Income.  The Authorized District Official treats the ticket or pass as income 

consistent with federal and state income tax laws and reports distribution of 

the tickets or passes as income to the Authorized District Official on the FPPC 

Form 802.  The official will also have to report it as a gift on their 700 Forms. 

Page 47 of 71



 

POLICY #BOD-18     Page 4 of 4 

d. Political and Non-Profit Fundraisers.  Ticket(s) (up to two) to political and non-

profit events that are provided directly to the public official by the political 

committee or 501(c)(3) organization and do not involve the District are not 

considered gifts (Regulation 18944.1). 

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article V, section 5.6 

Desert Healthcare District Resolution No. 19-05 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  06-28-2022 

Approved  04-23-2019 

 

Page 48 of 71



 

POLICY #FIN-02      Page 1 of 3 

 
 
POLICY TITLE: AUTHORIZED CHECK SIGNERS, NUMBER OF 

SIGNERS, DOLLAR LIMIT FOR SIGNERS, 
TRANSFER OF FUNDS 

  
POLICY NUMBER:             FIN-02 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025   
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-25-2025  
_______________________________________________      
 
POLICY #FIN-02: It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District’s Board of Directors 
(“Board”) to prudently disburse funds of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) in order 
to maintain Board-level oversight. It is intended that this policy covers all accounts and 
disbursement activities of the District and the Desert Healthcare Foundation 
(“Foundation”). 
 
GUIDELINES: 
      

1. Authorized signers on District and Foundation bank accounts are to be a 
minimum of four (4) Board Members (“Directors”), including the Chairperson of 
the Finance & Administration Committee, and the Chief Executive Officer 
(“CEO”). 
 

2. Authorized signers on Foundation investment accounts shall include a 
minimum of two (2) Directors, including the Board Treasurer. 

 
2.  Checks under $5,000.00 only require one signature. The CEO may be the one 

signer for any budgeted or Board approved item.  
 
3. Checks $5,000.00 and over require two signatures (the CEO and one Director 

or two Directors).  
 
4. Checks payable to a check signer (or associated with the check signer) 
     are to be signed by other authorized signers. 
 
5. Automatic Clearing House (“ACH”) transfers shall be allowed in lieu of a check 

payment under the following circumstances: 

Page 49 of 71



 

POLICY #FIN-02      Page 2 of 3 

a) Health, dental, vision, and insurance premiums 
b) Retirement account expenses 
c) Utility payments such as electricity, water, internet, and phone services 
d) Credit card payments 
e) On an as needed basis to avoid additional expenses such as late fees, 

to receive a discount on services, or when required by contract terms. 
 

6. ACH payments must be submitted and approved by different parties. Staff 
authorized to submit an ACH payment shall be the Accounting Manager, 
Chief Administration Officer (“CAO”) or Chief Executive Officer. Approval of 
a submitted ACH transfer is authorized by the CAO or CEO. Once an ACH 
transfer has been submitted and approved, the payment packet shall be 
routed for the initials of an authorized signer and is subject to the same 
dollar limits for checks. 
 

7. The transfer of funds between internal operating accounts shall be 
authorized by the CAO to address business needs. Operating accounts are 
held for the District, Foundation, and Las Palmas Medical Plaza. 

 
8. The transfer of funds to or from the Foundation investment accounts 

requires the authorization of a Director and adherence to the approval 
process. 

 
a. Transfers shall be prepared by District staff and shall include the 

following information: 
i. Source and destination account numbers (investment account 

to operating or operating to investment account only) 
ii. Value of transfer 
iii. Contact information of signing Director(s) 
iv. Copy of recent bank statements for source and destination 

accounts for validation 
v. Authorization by signature of at least one Director on file, after 

all other items have been provided for the Director’s review 
b. Once written transfer authorization has been completed, the transfer 

request will be submitted to the respective investment account bank 
for completion, as well as a copy to each Director with a signature on 
file with investment bank. 

Page 50 of 71



 

POLICY #FIN-02      Page 3 of 3 

c. Validation may be requested by the financial institution via phone or 
email from one of the Directors on file to confirm the transfer details. 

 
 
 
AUTHORITY 
Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article V, section 5.6 & Article VII 
 
DOCUMENT HISTORY 
Revised  02-25-2025 
Reviewed  06-25-2024 
Revised  06-28-2022 
Revised  06-23-2020 
Approved  03-22-2016 

Page 51 of 71



 

POLICY #FIN-02      Page 1 of 3 

 
 
POLICY TITLE: AUTHORIZED CHECK SIGNERS, NUMBER OF 

SIGNERS, DOLLAR LIMIT FOR SIGNERS, 
TRANSFER OF FUNDS 

  
POLICY NUMBER:             FIN-02 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025   
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-25-2025  
_______________________________________________      
 

POLICY #FIN-02: It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District’s Board of Directors 

(“Board”) to prudently disburse funds of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) in order 

to maintain Board-level oversight. It is intended that this policy covers all accounts and 

disbursement activities of the District and the Desert Healthcare Foundation 

(“Foundation”). 

 

GUIDELINES: 

      

1. Authorized signers on District and Foundation bank accounts are to be a 

minimum of four (4) Board Members (“Directors”), including the Chairperson of 

the Finance & Administration Committee, and the Chief Executive Officer 

(“CEO”). 

 

2. Authorized signers on Foundation investment accounts shall include a 

minimum of two (2) Directors, including the Board Treasurer. 

 

2.  Checks under $5,000.00 only require one signature. The CEO may be the one 

signer for any budgeted or Board approved item.  

 

3. Checks $5,000.00 and over require two signatures (the CEO and one Director 

or two Directors).  

 

4. Checks payable to a check signer (or associated with the check signer) 

     are to be signed by other authorized signers. 

 

5. Automatic Clearing House (“ACH”) transfers shall be allowed in lieu of a check 

payment under the following circumstances: 

Deleted: 06-11-2024

Deleted: 06-25-2024

Deleted: 1. 

Deleted: T

Deleted: Board member

Deleted: Board members

Page 52 of 71



 

POLICY #FIN-02      Page 2 of 3 

a) Health, dental, vision, and insurance premiums 

b) Retirement account expenses 

c) Utility payments such as electricity, water, internet, and phone services 

d) Credit card payments 

e) On an as needed basis to avoid additional expenses such as late fees, 

to receive a discount on services, or when required by contract terms. 

 

6. ACH payments must be submitted and approved by different parties. Staff 

authorized to submit an ACH payment shall be the Accounting Manager, 

Chief Administration Officer (“CAO”) or Chief Executive Officer. Approval of 

a submitted ACH transfer is authorized by the CAO or CEO. Once an ACH 

transfer has been submitted and approved, the payment packet shall be 

routed for the initials of an authorized signer and is subject to the same 

dollar limits for checks. 

 

7. The transfer of funds between internal operating accounts shall be 

authorized by the CAO to address business needs. Operating accounts are 

held for the District, Foundation, and Las Palmas Medical Plaza. 

 
8. The transfer of funds to or from the Foundation investment accounts 

requires the authorization of a Director and adherence to the approval 

process. 

 
a. Transfers shall be prepared by District staff and shall include the 

following information: 

i. Source and destination account numbers (investment account 

to operating or operating to investment account only) 

ii. Value of transfer 

iii. Contact information of signing Director(s) 

iv. Copy of recent bank statements for source and destination 

accounts for validation 

v. Authorization by signature of at least one Director on file, after 

all other items have been provided for the Director’s review 

b. Once written transfer authorization has been completed, the transfer 

request will be submitted to the respective investment account bank 

for completion, as well as a copy to each Director with a signature on 

file with investment bank. 

Page 53 of 71



 

POLICY #FIN-02      Page 3 of 3 

c. Validation may be requested by the financial institution via phone or 

email from one of the Directors on file to confirm the transfer details. 

 

 

 

AUTHORITY 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article V, section 5.6 & Article VII 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  02-25-2025 

Reviewed  06-25-2024 

Revised  06-28-2022 

Revised  06-23-2020 

Approved  03-22-2016 

Deleted: External transfer of funds are to be 
authorized by the District/Foundation Treasurer or 
any other authorized Director. Transfer of funds 
between internal operating accounts (District, 
Foundation, & Las Palmas Medical Plaza) is 
permitted by the Chief Administration Officer. ¶
¶

Page 54 of 71



 
 
 

POLICY #FIN-06     Page 1 of 2 
 

  
POLICY TITLE:   FINANCIAL RESERVE   
 
POLICY NUMBER:   FIN-06 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025  
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-25-2025       
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #FIN-06: It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) to establish 

the process to utilize District reserve funding. Reserve funding shall refer to the 

investment accounts of the District, currently held separately from the operating bank 

accounts. The intent of reserve funding is to provide an unrestricted investment account 

where excess operating funds can be deposited and withdrawn as needed to support the 

operation of the District, and to support expenditures authorized by the Board of Directors 

(“Board”). 

 

GUIDELINES: 

 

The District receives an estimated $10M annually from county property tax allocation. The 

operations of the District, including grant funding, are mostly funded by the annual tax 

allocation. The reserve fund is increased as tax payments are received or decreased as 

grant and operational costs are expended.  

 

1. The use of District reserve funding shall be allowed in the following situations: 

a. By a Board Director (“Director”) approved transfer to or from the District 

operating account to support the operation of the District 

b. By formal action of the Board 

 

2. Authorizations for the use of District reserve funding require adherence to the 

approval process. 

a. Operating account transfers shall be prepared by District staff and shall 

include the following information: 

i. Source and destination account numbers (reserve fund to operating 

or operating to reserve fund only) 

ii. Value of transfer 

iii. Contact information of signing Director(s) 

iv. Copy of recent bank statements for source and destination accounts 

Page 55 of 71



 
 
 

POLICY #FIN-06     Page 2 of 2 
 

for validation 

v. Authorization by signature of at least one Director on file, after all 

other items have been provided for the Director’s review 

b. Once written transfer authorization has been completed, the transfer will be 

entered into the banking system for approval. The CAO and CEO will have 

authority to submit and/or approve the transfers. Submission and approval 

will be separate actions and are unallowed to be completed by the same 

person. 

c. If the Board authorizes a formal action utilizing reserve funds, the transfer 

of those funds shall adhere to the same process as an operating account 

transfer.  

 

3. The balances of the reserve fund and operating accounts shall be included in the 

monthly financial statements on the balance sheet (Statement of Financial 

Position) report. Funds shall be transferred to and from the operating accounts 

from the reserve accounts as necessary for normal operation of the District. 

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article V, section 5.6 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  02-25-2025 

Revised  09-26-2023 

Revised  10-26-2021 

Approved  07-23-2019 

Page 56 of 71



 
 
 

POLICY #FIN-06     Page 1 of 2 
 

  
POLICY TITLE:   FINANCIAL RESERVE   
 
POLICY NUMBER:   FIN-06 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025  
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-25-2025       
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #FIN-06: It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) to establish 

the process to utilize District reserve funding. Reserve funding shall refer to the 

investment accounts of the District, currently held separately from the operating bank 

accounts. The intent of reserve funding is to provide an unrestricted investment account 

where excess operating funds can be deposited and withdrawn as needed to support the 

operation of the District, and to support expenditures authorized by the Board of Directors 

(“Board”). 

 

GUIDELINES: 

 

The District receives an estimated $10M annually from county property tax allocation. The 

operations of the District, including grant funding, are mostly funded by the annual tax 

allocation. The reserve fund is increased as tax payments are received or decreased as 

grant and operational costs are expended.  

 

1. The use of District reserve funding shall be allowed in the following situations: 

a. By a Board Director (“Director”) approved transfer to or from the District 

operating account to support the operation of the District 

b. By formal action of the Board 

 

2. Authorizations for the use of District reserve funding require adherence to the 

approval process. 

a. Operating account transfers shall be prepared by District staff and shall 

include the following information: 

i. Source and destination account numbers (reserve fund to operating 

or operating to reserve fund only) 

ii. Value of transfer 

iii. Contact information of signing Director(s) 

iv. Copy of recent bank statements for source and destination accounts 

Deleted: 09-07-2023

Deleted: 09-26-2023

Deleted: ¶
1.1 Purpose: The 

Deleted: shall maintain reserve funds in accordance 
with the District’s Reserve Policy. This policy 
establishes the procedure and level of 

Deleted:  to achieve the following specific goals:¶
a) Fund the operating capital of Desert Regional 
Medical Center (“DRMC”) for two (2) months in the 
event of early termination of the lease of DRMC by 
Tenet or the District; or¶
b) Fund major repairs of DRMC, including partial 
seismic retrofit costs; or¶
c) Fund grants and overhead costs of

Moved (insertion) [1]

Deleted: 9

Deleted: R

Deleted: F

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: U

Deleted: Reserves is limited to the 

Deleted:  established with MUFG Union Bank. 
Special use of the funds will be designated by formal 
action of the Board of Directors. The purposes of the 
reserve fund are listed below.

Page 57 of 71



 
 
 

POLICY #FIN-06     Page 2 of 2 
 

for validation 

v. Authorization by signature of at least one Director on file, after all 

other items have been provided for the Director’s review 

b. Once written transfer authorization has been completed, the transfer will be 

entered into the banking system for approval. The CAO and CEO will have 

authority to submit and/or approve the transfers. Submission and approval 

will be separate actions and are unallowed to be completed by the same 

person. 

c. If the Board authorizes a formal action utilizing reserve funds, the transfer 

of those funds shall adhere to the same process as an operating account 

transfer.  

 

3. The balances of the reserve fund and operating accounts shall be included in the 

monthly financial statements on the balance sheet (Statement of Financial 

Position) report. Funds shall be transferred to and from the operating accounts 

from the reserve accounts as necessary for normal operation of the District. 

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article V, section 5.6 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  02-25-2025 

Revised  09-26-2023 

Revised  10-26-2021 

Approved  07-23-2019 

Deleted: a) DRMC Operating Capital:¶
The District is in a 30-year lease to operate DRMC with 
Tenet Health Systems which expires on May 29, 2027. 
In the event of termination of the lease agreement, the 
District would be responsible for operating the hospital 
during the transition without interruption and would 
require upfront operating capital for two (2) months of 
approximately $125M. ¶
b) Major repairs of DRMC, including seismic retrofit 
costs:¶
DRMC falls under the seismic retrofit guidelines of SB 
1953, which requires the hospital to be seismically 
compliant by the year 2030. Should the District be 
required to complete the seismic retrofit, it is estimated 
$222M will be required to bring DRMC into compliance. 
It is presently unknown if the Lessee (Tenet) or the 
District will pay for the seismic retrofit. ¶
c) Grant funding and District operating expenses:

Moved up [1]: The District receives an estimated $9M 
annually from county property tax allocation. The 
operations of the District, including grant funding, are 
mostly funded by the annual tax allocation. The 
Reserve Fund is increased as tax payments are 
received or decreased as grant and operational costs 
are expended. ¶

Deleted: ¶
1.3 Using Reserve Funds:¶
a) DRMC Operating Capital:¶
Reserve funds will be used exclusively for operating 
DRMC during a transition period should the hospital 
lease be terminated. ¶
b) Major repairs of DRMC, including seismic retrofit 
costs:¶
Reserve funds will be used exclusively for major 
repairs, including seismic retrofit costs, of DRMC 
should the District be responsible for these costs. ¶
c) Grant funding and District operating expenses:¶
Reserve funds will be used as necessary for grant 
funding and District operating expenses. ¶
¶
1.4 Monitoring Reserve Levels & Records: The Chief 
Executive Officer, in collaboration with the Chief 
Administration Officer, shall maintain accurate 
accounting records of the reserve fund and provide 
transparency to the Board of Directors. ¶
a) The District’s Reserve Fund shall be maintained at 
approximately $60M.¶
¶
¶

Page 58 of 71



    

POLICY #OP-06     Page 1 of 1 
 

 
POLICY TITLE:   DELEGATING MINOR CLAIMS TO THE CEO   
 
POLICY NUMBER:   OP-06 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025  
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-25-2025   
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #OP-06: It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) Board of 

Directors (“Board”) to provide an efficient procedure for handling minor claims filed 

against the District per Government Code Section 935.4.  

 

      1.   Minor claims are considered claims which do not exceed $5,000.  

  

      2.   The Board delegates authority to the Chief Executive Officer to take all 

administrative actions necessary to resolve minor claims against the District which do not 

exceed $5,000. 

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Resolution #11-04 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Reviewed  02-25-2025 

Reviewed  03-28-2023 

Revised  11-24-2020 

Approved  05-24-2016  

 

Page 59 of 71



    

POLICY #OP-06     Page 1 of 1 
 

 
POLICY TITLE:   DELEGATING MINOR CLAIMS TO THE CEO   
 
POLICY NUMBER:   OP-06 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025  
    
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-25-2025   
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #OP-06: It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) Board of 

Directors (“Board”) to provide an efficient procedure for handling minor claims filed 

against the District per Government Code Section 935.4.  

 

      1.   Minor claims are considered claims which do not exceed $5,000.  

  

      2.   The Board delegates authority to the Chief Executive Officer to take all 

administrative actions necessary to resolve minor claims against the District which do not 

exceed $5,000. 

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Resolution #11-04 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Reviewed  02-25-2025 

Reviewed  03-28-2023 

Revised  11-24-2020 

Approved  05-24-2016  

 

Deleted: 03-07-2023

Deleted: 03-28-2023

Page 60 of 71



 

POLICY #PROC-01      Page 1 of 2 

 
POLICY TITLE: PURPOSE OF BOARD POLICIES & 

ADOPTION/AMENDMENT OF POLICIES 
  
POLICY NUMBER:   PROC-01 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025 
    
BOARD APPROVAL DATE: 02-25-2025  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #PROC-01:  It is the intent of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) Board of 

Directors (“Board”) to maintain a Policy Manual. 

 

GUIDELINES: 

 

    1.   The manual will be a comprehensive listing of the Board's current policies, being 

the rules and regulations approved by the Board, reviewed every two years or as 

needed. The Board of Directors may update any policy at any time at their 

discretion. The Policy Manual will serve as a resource for the Board, staff and 

members of the public in determining the manner in which matters of District 

business are to be conducted. 

  

    2. Policies are clear, simple statements of how the District intends to conduct its 

services, actions or business. They provide a set of guiding principles to help with 

decision making. 

 

    3. If any policy or portion of a policy contained within the Policy Manual is in conflict with 

rules, regulations or legislation having authority over the District, those rules, 

regulations or legislation shall prevail. Where this occurs, the Board of Directors will 

clarify either the rules or policy to assure that they are compatible. 

 

    4. Consideration by the Board of Directors to adopt a new policy or to amend an existing 

policy may be initiated by the Board President, two Board Members or by Staff.  The 

proposed adoption or amendment is initiated by requesting that the item be included 

for consideration on the agenda of the Board & Staff Communications and Policies 

Committee. 

 

   5. The Board & Staff Communications and Policies Committee shall review all 

policies and make recommendations for approval to the Board of Directors.  If there 

Page 61 of 71



 

POLICY #PROC-01      Page 2 of 2 

is no consensus at the Board & Staff Communications and Policies Committee, 

the policy may be referred for action to the full Board of Directors without a 

recommendation. 

 

   6.     Policies will be reviewed by legal counsel as applicable. 

 

    7.   Adoption of a new policy or revision of an existing policy shall be accomplished at a 

regular meeting of the Board of Directors and shall require a majority vote of all Board 

Members present. 

 

    8. Before considering adopting or revising any policy, Board Members and the public 

shall have the opportunity to review the proposed adoption or revision prior to the 

meeting at which consideration for adoption or revision is to be given. Copies of the 

proposed policy adoption or revision shall be included in the agenda information packet 

for any meeting of consideration. The agenda information packets with said copies 

shall be made available to each Board Member for review at least three (3) days prior 

to any meeting at which the policies are to be considered. 

 

9. Policies which fall under the authority of the Finance & Administration Committee and 

Program Committee shall be reviewed by the respective committee in addition to 

review by the Board & Staff Communications and Policies Committee. 

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article VI, section 6.2(e) 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  02-25-2025 

Reviewed  09-26-2023 

Revised  02-22-2022 

Revised  06-23-2020 

Approved  01-26-2016 

Page 62 of 71



 

POLICY #PROC-01      Page 1 of 2 

 
POLICY TITLE: PURPOSE OF BOARD POLICIES & 

ADOPTION/AMENDMENT OF POLICIES 
  
POLICY NUMBER:   PROC-01 
 
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025 
    
BOARD APPROVAL DATE: 02-25-2025  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

POLICY #PROC-01:  It is the intent of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) Board of 

Directors (“Board”) to maintain a Policy Manual. 

 

GUIDELINES: 

 

    1.   The manual will be a comprehensive listing of the Board's current policies, being 

the rules and regulations approved by the Board, reviewed every two years or as 

needed. The Board of Directors may update any policy at any time at their 

discretion. The Policy Manual will serve as a resource for the Board, staff and 

members of the public in determining the manner in which matters of District 

business are to be conducted. 

  

    2. Policies are clear, simple statements of how the District intends to conduct its 

services, actions or business. They provide a set of guiding principles to help with 

decision making. 

 

    3. If any policy or portion of a policy contained within the Policy Manual is in conflict with 

rules, regulations or legislation having authority over the District, those rules, 

regulations or legislation shall prevail. Where this occurs, the Board of Directors will 

clarify either the rules or policy to assure that they are compatible. 

 

    4. Consideration by the Board of Directors to adopt a new policy or to amend an existing 

policy may be initiated by the Board President, two Board Members or by Staff.  The 

proposed adoption or amendment is initiated by requesting that the item be included 

for consideration on the agenda of the Board & Staff Communications and Policies 

Committee. 

 

   5. The Board & Staff Communications and Policies Committee shall review all 

policies and make recommendations for approval to the Board of Directors.  If there 

Deleted: 09-07-2023

Deleted: 09-26-2023

Page 63 of 71



 

POLICY #PROC-01      Page 2 of 2 

is no consensus at the Board & Staff Communications and Policies Committee, 

the policy may be referred for action to the full Board of Directors without a 

recommendation. 

 

   6.     Policies will be reviewed by legal counsel as applicable. 

 

    7.   Adoption of a new policy or revision of an existing policy shall be accomplished at a 

regular meeting of the Board of Directors and shall require a majority vote of all Board 

Members present. 

 

    8. Before considering adopting or revising any policy, Board Members and the public 

shall have the opportunity to review the proposed adoption or revision prior to the 

meeting at which consideration for adoption or revision is to be given. Copies of the 

proposed policy adoption or revision shall be included in the agenda information packet 

for any meeting of consideration. The agenda information packets with said copies 

shall be made available to each Board Member for review at least three (3) days prior 

to any meeting at which the policies are to be considered. 

 

9. Policies which fall under the authority of the Finance & Administration Committee and 

Program Committee shall be reviewed by the respective committee in addition to 

review by the Board & Staff Communications and Policies Committee. 

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article VI, section 6.2(e) 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Revised  02-25-2025 

Reviewed  09-26-2023 

Revised  02-22-2022 

Revised  06-23-2020 

Approved  01-26-2016 

Page 64 of 71



 

POLICY #OP-17      Page 1 of 2 

 
POLICY TITLE: SPONSORSHIPS 
  
POLICY NUMBER:   OP-17  
    
COMMITTEE APPROVAL: 02-13-2025 
 
BOARD APPROVAL: 02-25-2025  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
POLICY #OP-17:  It is the policy of the Desert Healthcare District (“District”) to define the 

circumstances surrounding the sponsorship of events and conferences. The support of 

local organizational events not only provides financial support to the community in line 

with the mission and vision of the District, but it also provides opportunities to share and 

promote the work of the District and increase visibility. 

 

GUIDELINES: 

 

1. The budgeted value for sponsorships shall be included with the annual budget 

submitted to the Board of Directors (“Board”) for approval per Policy #FIN-04. 

 

2. The fiscal year budget for sponsorships cannot operate with a deficit balance 

without Board approval. 

 

3. Sponsorship requests shall clearly state: 

 
3.1. The dollar amount being requested for the sponsorship 

3.2. The sponsorship levels available 

3.3. How the sponsorship of the event will provide benefit to the community (to 

demonstrate alignment with the mission and vision of the District) by either 

detailing how the sponsorship funding will be used or how it would provide 

general support for the organization’s purpose 

3.4. The date and location of the event, along with applicable deadlines 

3.5. The pricing for additional tickets or passes to attend, should the desired 

sponsorship level not allow for attendance of all interested Board & Staff 

 

4. Sponsorships 

 

4.1. Sponsorships up to $5,000 shall be approved by the Chief Executive Officer 

(“CEO”)  

Page 65 of 71



 

POLICY #OP-17      Page 2 of 2 

4.2. Sponsorships $5,000 and greater shall be presented to the Board for approval 

4.3. Should a sponsorship opportunity be presented where deadlines do not allow 

time to be added to the next Board agenda, approval may be requested from 

the Board President by the CEO, with item agendized for the next scheduled 

Board of Directors’ meeting 

4.4. Sponsorships shall be limited to a maximum of $25,000 per organization per 

fiscal year 

4.5. Organizations may submit multiple sponsorship requests during the fiscal 

year, but the cumulative value of awarded sponsorships to a single 

organization may not exceed the maximum of $25,000 per fiscal year 

4.6. Related organizations shall be considered as a single organization for 

purposes of calculating sponsorship maximum values 

 

 

 

AUTHORITIES 

Desert Healthcare District Bylaws Article V, Section 5.6 

 

 

DOCUMENT HISTORY 

Approved  02-25-2025 

 

 

 

               

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66 of 71



Assembly Bill No. 2019

CHAPTER 257

An act to add Section 6270.7 to the Government Code, and to amend
Section 32139 of, and to add Sections 32132.96 and 32140 to, the Health
and Safety Code, relating to health care districts.

[Approved by Governor September 5, 2018. Filed with Secretary
of State September 5, 2018.]

legislative counsel’s digest

AB 2019, Aguiar-Curry. Health care districts.
The Local Health Care District Law provides for local health care districts

that govern certain health care facilities. Each health care district has a board
of directors with specific duties and powers respecting the creation,
administration, and maintenance of the district. Existing law requires the
board of directors to establish and maintain an Internet Web site that may
include specified information, such as a list of current board members and
recipients of grant funding or assistance provided by the district, if any, and
to adopt annual policies for providing assistance or grant funding, as
specified. Existing law authorizes certain health care districts to use the
design-build process when contracting for the construction of a hospital or
other buildings in those districts, as specified.

This bill would require the board of directors to include specified
information, such as the district’s policy for providing assistance or grant
funding, on the district’s Internet Web site. The bill would require that policy
to contain, among other things, the district’s plan for distributing grant funds
for each fiscal year and a process for providing, accepting, and reviewing
grant applications. The bill would also require the board to, upon filing a
petition under federal bankruptcy law, provide written notice within 10
business days to the local agency formation commission of the principal
county in which the district is located. The bill would require a district that
is authorized and elects to use the design-build process, as specified, for the
construction of housing to require that at least 20% of the residential units
constructed be subject to a recorded affordability restriction for at least 55
years and be affordable to lower income households, very low income
households, extremely low income households, and persons and families
of low or moderate income, as defined, unless the city, county, or city and
county in which the district is predominantly located has adopted a local
ordinance that requires a greater percentage of the units be affordable to
those groups or unless the construction is for purposes of building workforce
housing, health facilities, or retirement facilities, as specified. By increasing
the duties of the board of directors, including duties related to disclosure of
public records, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program.

 

 92  

Page 67 of 71



Existing law, the California Public Records Act, requires state and local
agencies to make their records available for public inspection, unless an
exemption from disclosure applies.

This bill would require each health care district, in implementing the
California Public Records Act, to maintain an Internet Web site in
accordance with the provisions described above. Because the bill would
require health care districts to perform additional duties, it would impose a
state-mandated local program.

The California Constitution requires local agencies, for the purpose of
ensuring public access to the meetings of public bodies and the writings of
public officials and agencies, to comply with a statutory enactment that
amends or enacts laws relating to public records or open meetings and
contains findings demonstrating that the enactment furthers the constitutional
requirements relating to this purpose.

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect.
The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies

and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. Statutory
provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that with regard to certain mandates no
reimbursement is required by this act for a specified reason.

With regard to any other mandates, this bill would provide that, if the
Commission on State Mandates determines that the bill contains costs so
mandated by the state, reimbursement for those costs shall be made pursuant
to the statutory provisions noted above.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 6270.7 is added to the Government Code, to read:
6270.7. In implementing this chapter, each health care district shall

maintain an Internet Web site in accordance with subdivision (b) of Section
32139 of the Health and Safety Code.

SEC. 2. Section 32132.96 is added to the Health and Safety Code, to
read:

32132.96. (a)  Except as provided in subdivision (b), (c), or (d), a district
that is authorized and elects to use the design-build process described in
Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 22160) of Part 3 of Division 2 of the
Public Contract Code for the construction of housing shall require that at
least 20 percent of the residential units constructed be subject to a recorded
affordability restriction for at least 55 years and be affordable to all of the
following:

(1)  Lower income households, as defined in Section 50079.5.
(2)  Very low income households, as defined in Section 50105.
(3)  Extremely low income households, as defined in Section 50106.
(4)  Persons and families of low or moderate income, as defined in Section

50093.

92

— 2 —Ch. 257

 

Page 68 of 71



(b)  Subdivision (a) shall not apply if the city, county, or city and county
in which the district is predominantly located has adopted a local ordinance
that requires a greater percentage of the units be affordable to lower income
households, very low income households, extremely low income households,
and persons and families of low or moderate income.

(c)  Subdivision (a) shall not apply to any district that is authorized and
elects to use the design-build process described in Chapter 4 (commencing
with Section 22160) of Part 3 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code for
the construction of any health facilities or retirement facilities exclusively
providing care or supportive services to the elderly, disabled adults, or
individuals with dementia, including, but not limited to, residential care
facilities for the elderly.

(d)  Subdivision (a) shall not apply to any district that is authorized and
elects to use the design-build process described in Chapter 4 (commencing
with Section 22160) of Part 3 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code for
the construction of workforce housing that is otherwise required by local
ordinance.

SEC. 3. Section 32139 of the Health and Safety Code is amended to
read:

32139. The board of directors shall do all of the following:
(a)  Adopt an annual budget in a public meeting, on or before September

1 of each year, that conforms to generally accepted accounting and budgeting
procedures for special districts.

(b)  Establish and maintain an Internet Web site that lists contact
information for the district. The Internet Web site shall also list all of the
following:

(1)  The adopted budget.
(2)  A list of current board members.
(3)  Information regarding public meetings required pursuant to Section

32106 or the Ralph M. Brown Act (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section
54950) of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code).

(4)  A municipal service review or special study conducted by a local
agency formation commission pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg
Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (Division 3 (commencing
with Section 56000) of Title 5 of the Government Code), if any. The board
may comply with this paragraph by posting a link on its Internet Web site
to another government Internet Web site that contains the specified
information.

(5)  Recipients of grant funding or assistance provided by the district, if
any.

(6)  Audits of the district’s accounts and records pursuant to Section 26909
of the Government Code or Section 32133 of this code. The board may
comply with this paragraph by posting a link on its Internet Web site to
another government Internet Web site that contains the specified information.

(7)  Annual financial reports to the Controller, submitted pursuant to
Section 53890 of the Government Code. The board may comply with this

92

Ch. 257— 3 —

 

Page 69 of 71



paragraph by posting a link on its Internet Web site to another government
Internet Web site that contains the specified information.

(8)  The district’s policy for providing assistance or grant funding
described in subdivision (c).

(9)  Any other information the board deems relevant.
(c)  Adopt annual policies for providing assistance or grant funding, if

the district provides assistance or grants pursuant to Section 32126.5 or any
other law. This policy shall include all of the following:

(1)  A nexus between the allocation of assistance and grant funding with
health care and the mission of the district.

(2)  A process for the district to ensure allocated grant funding is spent
consistently with the grant application and the mission and purpose of the
district, including, but not limited to, requirements that a grant recipient
must meet, such as grant contract terms and conditions, fiscal and
programmatic monitoring by the district, and reporting to the district.

(3)  The district’s plan for distributing grant funds for each fiscal year.
(4)  A process for providing, accepting, and reviewing grant applications.
(5)  A prohibition against individual meetings regarding grant applications

between a grant applicant and a district board member, officer, or staff
outside of the district’s established grant awards process. A district’s
established grant awards process may include the provision of technical
assistance to grant applicants, upon request, by district grant program staff.

(6)  Beginning January 1, 2020, guidelines for all of the following:
(A)  Awarding grants to underserved individuals and communities, and

to organizations that meet the needs of underserved individuals and
communities.

(B)  Considering the circumstances under which grants may be awarded
to multiple or single recipients, and exceptions to these circumstances.

(C)  Evaluating the financial need of grant applicants.
(D)  Considering the types of programs eligible for grant funding,

including direct patient care, preventive care, and wellness programs.
(E)  Considering the circumstances under which grants may be provided

to prior grant recipients, and exceptions to these circumstances.
(F)  Considering sponsorships of charitable events.
(G)  Funding other government agencies.
(H)  Awarding grants to, and limiting funds for, foundations that are

sponsored or controlled by, or associated with, a separate grant recipient.
SEC. 4. Section 32140 is added to the Health and Safety Code, to read:
32140. Upon filing a petition under federal bankruptcy law, the board

of directors shall provide written notice within 10 business days to the local
agency formation commission of the principal county in which it is located.

SEC. 5. The Legislature finds and declares that Section 1 of this act,
which adds Section 6270.7 to the Government Code, and Section 2 of this
act, which amends Section 32139 of the Health and Safety Code, further,
within the meaning of paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article
I of the California Constitution, the purposes of that constitutional section
as it relates to the right of public access to the meetings of local public

92

— 4 —Ch. 257

 

Page 70 of 71



bodies or the writings of local public officials and local agencies. Pursuant
to paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California
Constitution, the Legislature makes the following findings:

By requiring health care districts to post specified information on their
Internet Web site, this act increases public access to public records, and
thereby furthers the purposes of paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section
3 of Article I of the California Constitution.

SEC. 6. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6
of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because the only costs that
may be incurred by a local agency or school district under this act would
result from a legislative mandate that is within the scope of paragraph (7)
of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution.

However, if the Commission on State Mandates determines that this act
contains other costs mandated by the state, reimbursement to local agencies
and school districts for those costs shall be made pursuant to Part 7
(commencing with Section 17500) of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government
Code.

O

92

Ch. 257— 5 —

 

Page 71 of 71


	DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
	BOARD AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS AND POLICIES
	Board and Staff Communications and Policies Committee Meeting
	February 13, 2025
	4:00 P.M.
	REVISED AGENDA
	Call to Order – President Carole Rogers, RN, Chair
	Approval of the Agenda
	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	June 11, 2024 Action

	Public Comments
	Old Business
	Policy BOD-02 – Elections and Appointments
	Policy BOD 03 – Appointment to Committees
	BOD-09 Rules of Order for Board and Committee Meetings
	Policy BOD-10 – Board Meeting Conduct
	BOD 18 – Ticket Distribution Policy
	FIN 02 – Authorized Check Signers
	FIN 06 – Financial Reserve Policy
	OP-06 Delegating Minor Claims Settlement to CEO
	PROC-01 Purpose of Board Policies
	OP-17 Sponsorships

	New Business
	AB 2019 – Aguiar-Curry – Health Care Districts

	Future Topics & Issues
	Adjournment

	Agenda
	C. 1. C. 06-11-24  Board Staff Communications & Policies Draft Action Minutes
	E. 1. E.1. Policy #BOD-02 -Elections and Appointment - 02.27.2024
	There shall be four Board officers: President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer. It shall be the policy of the Board that there will be no mandatory rotation of officers; however, the Board shall customarily retain the President for two (2) co...

	E. 2. E.2. Policy #BOD-03 Appointment to Committees - 02.25.2025 Clean & Redlined Drafts
	E. 3. Policy #BOD-09  Rules of Order for Board and Committee Meetings - 02.25.2025 Clean & Redlined Drafts
	E. 4. E.4. Policy #BOD-10  Board Meeting Conduct & Civility - 03.28.2023
	E. 5. E.5. Policy #BOD-18 Ticket Distribution Policy - 06.28.2022
	E. 6. E.6. Policy #FIN-02 Authorized Check Signers - 02.25.2025 Clean & Redlined Draft
	E. 7. E.7. Policy #FIN-06 Financial Reserve Policy - 02.25.2025 Clean & Redlined Drafts
	E. 8. E.8. Policy #OP-06 Delegating Minor Claims Settlement to CEO - 02.25.2025 Clean & Redlined Drafts
	E. 9. E.9. Policy #PROC-01 Purpose of Board Policies - 02.25.2025 Clean & Redlined Draft
	E. 10. E.10. Policy #OP-17 - Sponsorships - 02.25.2025 Draft
	F. 1. F.1. AB 2019 Legislation



